
 
Telephone Enquiries: Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer, (01254) 380109 
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on: Tuesday 22 October 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 31 October 2019 at 3.00 pm, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors: Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Terry Hurn, Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane 
and Paddy Short 
 
Co Optees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson, Ian Ormerod and Molineux 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 5th September 2019 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended  - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

3.   Review of New Recycling Scheme and Litter/ Dog Fouling Enforcement Scheme  
(Pages 7 - 14) 
 
To update the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s new 
recycling scheme and town centre litter and dog fouling enforcement. 

 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Recommended - That the report be noted and any comments be submitted to the 
Executive Director (Environment). 
 

4.   Hyndburn Arts Trust  (Pages 15 - 34) 
 
To allow the Committee to review its conditions to grant a payment of £30,000 to 
Hyndburn Arts Ltd based over three financial instalments. 
 
Recommended - That Cabinet be requested to grant £10,000 (Tranche 2) to be 
released subject to the resolutions of the Committee being met which were set at 
the 5th September 2019 meeting of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
 

5.   Review of Agency Staff Costs   
 
To inform the Committee of research undertaken in relation to agency staff costs for 
Hyndburn Borough Council. 
 
 

 
 



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 5th September, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Patrick McGinley and Tim O'Kane 
Co-optees: Paul Barton and Bernard Dawson. 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Sara Britcliffe, Glen Harrison and Miles Parkinson OBE 
Mr B. Highton, Mrs G. Knight and Ms K. Whitehead 

  

Apologies: Councillors Terry Hurn and Paddy Short 
 

 
102 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Terry Hurn and Paddy Short. 
 
Councillors Tony Dobson and Stewart Eaves acted as substitute representatives for 
Councillors Hurn and Short. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

103 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 30th July 2019 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

104 People Strategy 
 
The Head of Policy and Organisational Development, Kirsten Burnett informed the 
Committee of progress made against actions in the People Strategy. She also introduced a 
new People Strategy to cover 2019-2021 and presented the Annual Workforce Report, 
attached to the agenda as Appendix 3. 
 
The committee were provided with details in the report on apprenticeships, workforce 
performance indicators, the employee survey and recruitment & retention difficulties. 
 
Attached to the agenda in appendix 1 was the people strategy containing a number of 
actions and targets along with the workforce report as of the 31st March 2019. 
 
A number of advanced questions had been submitted:- 
 

 Paragraph 3.11 mentions difficulty filling posts. What posts have been difficult to fill 
and what have been the difficulties filling those posts? 

 

 Do we have difficulty retaining members of staff? What is our staff turnover rate and 
how does this compare with other Councils? 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 When people leave Hyndburn Borough Council, do we ask them why and record the 
information? If so, are there any common reasons why people leave the 
organisation? 
 

 Section 3.4 of the Workforce report shows out of 26 new appointments, only one 
was aged under 30. Are we struggling to attract young people to the organisation 
and if so, what can we do to rectify this? 

 
The Head of Policy and OD answered the questions raised in detail and was thanked by the 
Chair for attending the meeting. 
 
Resolved - That progress and proposed actions were noted and any  

suggestions for additional actions would be given to the Head of 
Policy and OD. 

 
105 Request for Support for the Operational Management of Council Buildings 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to allow the Committee to review its 
recommendation to grant a one off payment of £30,000 to Hyndburn Arts Ltd based on 
additional information received from the company. 
 
At its meeting on 30th July 2019, the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
considered the item “Requests for Support for the Operational Management of Council 
Buildings”. 
 
One of the requests considered and approved at the July meeting was from Hyndburn Arts 
Ltd. This particular request was for £30,000 to cover the operational management of 
Oswaldtwistle Civic Theatre and Arts Centre. 
 
Since this meeting, the Chair of the Committee had received additional information from 
Hyndburn Arts Ltd and chose to bring the item back to Scrutiny for further discussion. 
 
Updated information was presented at the meeting by Gayle Knight and Bill Highton, Chair 
of Hyndburn Arts Limited. 
 
Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved – That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 

Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting at this 
point, when it was likely, in view of the nature of the 
proceedings that there would otherwise be disclosure of 
exempt information within the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of 
the Act specified at this item. 

 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
No advanced questions were submitted but a number of questions were asked in the 
private part of the meeting specific to the business dealings of the Trust. 
 
With the meeting being reopened to the public and press after discussion of commercially 
sensitive information, the Chair thanked representatives from Hyndburn Arts Limited for 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
 

attending the meeting and providing information. The Committee had considered the 
information submitted and made recommendations to Cabinet accordingly. 

Resolved - That Cabinet be requested to note the following 
resolutions of the Committee:- 

(1) That Cabinet grant £30,000 of funding to Hyndburn 
Arts Ltd over 3 instalments, subject to the following 
conditions:- 

(a) Tranche 1: £10,000 to be released immediately. 

(b) Tranche 2: £10,000 to be released subject to the 
following (expected to be on, or after 31st October 
2019):- 

(c) A documented plan to be submitted to the next 
Overview and  Scrutiny  meeting undertaking a 
review of the board of directors including a skills 
audit to identify any skills gap on the board as well a 
strategy to attract new board members to offer 
advice and guidance in addressing any shortfall 
identified in the Skills Audit, and:- 

(d) With assistance from Finance Officers at Hyndburn 
BC, revamp and overhaul the finance report that is 
submitted to the board to include commentary as 
well as submission in a timely manner. This report 
on a bimonthly basis will be submitted to O&S with a 
review by the finance officer to state it agrees to 
underlying records, and:- 

 
(e) To have a set schedule of monthly board meetings 

arranged to March 2020, and:- 
 

(f) To start and give a time frame for when the accounts 
for year end 31/03/19 will be finalised and submitted 
to Companies House and the Charity Commission, 
and:- 

(g) To provide an update on the fundraising plan and 
provide commentary where variances have 

occurred, and:- 

(h) To undertake a review of cost savings measures and 
submit to board for discussions as well as create an 
action plan, and:- 

(i) To highlight any funding opportunities that 
Hyndburn Arts have bid for and the outcome. 

 
Tranche 3: (19th December 2019) 

(j) To have met all the conditions set out in Tranche 2 
and submit evidence of this to O&S over a 3 month 
period to highlight the changes, and:- 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
 

(k) To provide the forecast 2020/21 using the new 
format from the financial review. 

(2) That over the next 2 years, the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee invite all organisations, 
charities or community groups which manage 
Council buildings to report on usage and financial 
position:- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 6



 

 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and  Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 31 October 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox – Deputy Leader – Environmental 
Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Executive Director (Environment) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Review of New Recycling Scheme and Litter / Dog 
Fouling Enforcement Scheme  

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s new recycling 

scheme and town centre litter and dog fouling enforcement. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee to note the report and make any comments. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 New Recycling Collections 
3.1.1 From 1st April 2018, Lancashire County Council ceased all Cost Share payments to 

Hyndburn Council and took ownership of all recycled materials collected and their income, 
which resulted in the reduction of approximately £850,000 from the Council’s budget. This, 
together with the continued reduction in the Council’s Revenue Support Grant, required a 
fundamentally change in the way the Council delivered its recycling collection and street 
cleaning services. 

 
3.1.2 To achieve the required savings, the Council proposed a change from recycling bags and 

boxes to wheeled bins. Making this decision allowed for the standardisation of the waste 
collection vehicle fleet and because all the vehicles would be compaction vehicles with an 
additional 2 tonne capacity, the Council was able to reduce the number of vehicles from 11 
to 10.  Recycling crew numbers were reduced to driver plus 2 loaders but remained at 
driver plus 3 loaders for domestic refuse, as these crews also collect fly-tipped waste and 
non-recyclable household bulky collections. Wheeled bins would also result in less wind-

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 

 

blown litter, so there could also be a reduction in the number of hand sweepers deployed 
each day. 

 
 New Service 
3.1.3 Implementing the new recycling service during July/August 2018 was a massive logistical 

exercise, requiring a tender exercise for 10 new compaction vehicles and the supply and 
delivery for 70,000 wheeled bins. In addition, all households were provided with an in-
house designed information pack which included an introductory letter, collection calendar, 
list of Frequently Asked Questions and battery recycling bags.  

 
3.1.4 Dry recycling was simplified, by splitting recyclable items between two coloured wheeled 

bins: 
 
 Brown Bin 

 Paper and Card (including Waxed Cartons) 
 

Blue Bin 

 Plastic bottles and containers (including Pots, Tubs and Trays) 

 Metal cans and containers 

 Glass bottles and jars 
 
3.1.5 Hyndburn was until very recently the only Council in Lancashire to offer households the 

opportunity to recycle waxed cartons, (Tetra Pak) and plastic pots, tubs and trays. In 
addition to these materials, Hyndburn residents can also recycle household batteries on 
any waste collection day, with textiles, mattresses, clean timber and electrical goods also 
recycled via the Council’s free bulky waste collection service. 

 
3.1.6 Implementing this project was a real team effort, which involved the operational staff and 

officers. This shows how a well-planned, suitably funded, large scale complex project can 
be successfully delivered by a small team on time and within budget. Whilst there were a 
number of requests from residents for smaller bins/to share with neighbours, feedback 
from Councillors and residents has been very positive. As expected, there is also a 
noticeable improvement in street cleanliness because the bins keep all the recycling 
secure.  

 
 Recycling Rates 
3.1.7 All EU member states are legally obliged to recycle 50% of their waste by 2020, a target 

most member states are struggling to meet, including the UK. Whilst there is still 
uncertainty around the UK’s departure from the EU, the Government has produced a 
Waste and Resource Strategy, which contains recycling targets of 50% by 2020, 65% by 
2035 and to have 10% or less municipal waste being sent to landfill by 2035. 

 
3.1.8 The Council’s full year domestic recycling tonnage, (1st April 18 to 31st March 19) for 

kerbside paper and cardboard, glass, metal and plastic was 5,860 tonnes compared with 
5,748 tonnes for the previous year. Garden waste sent for composting was 1,147 tonnes 
compared with 1,732 tonnes last year, (this is now a 50% reduction since charging was 
implemented). In addition, there was a further 312 tonnes of fridges, batteries, scrap 
metal, mattresses, wood, TV’s and other electrical goods diverted from landfill. Appendix 1 

Page 8



 

 

shows a performance dashboard that was presented to the Lancashire Waste Partnership 
in July 2019 showing how Hyndburn compared against other Lancashire Councils with 
regards to the two recycling streams. 

 
3.1.9 The Council’s recycling figure for 2018/19 continues to remain fairly constant at around 

33% with government published figures showing the following North West authorities; 
Barrow-in-Furness, Liverpool, Preston, Ribble Valley, Blackburn with Darwen, Pendle, 
Burnley, Copeland and Wirral all have lower recycling rates. The attached performance 
‘Dashboard’ shows Hyndburn’s recycling rates against other Councils across Lancashire. 

 
The Council’s recycling figure can partly be attributed to the following factors: 

 

 Collections from wheeled bins only commenced across the Borough from mid-
August 2018. Financial year 2019/20 will provide the first full year’s figures using 
wheeled bins and hopefully show an increase. 

 There is a substantial decrease in waste paper nationally due to the decline of 
print based newspapers, magazines, books as other electronic formats grow. 

 Council’s with recycling figures above 60% almost certainly have a far higher 
percentage of garden properties within their Borough and in the main, have a 
higher disposable income to pay for garden waste collections. Properties with 
gardens in Hyndburn only account for around 33% of total properties and last year 
the tonnage was down 50% prior to the implementation of collection charges. 

 It has been noted from the start of the recycling service back in 2003, that 
households in Hyndburn consume a higher proportion of lighter drinking cans 
manufactured from aluminium, rather than the heavier wine bottles manufactured 
from glass. 

 
3.1.10 The Latest government figures published for 2017/18 show the Council: 

 

 Is number 1 in the North West and 9th nationally for the ‘Lowest Household Waste 
Generation per Head’, (the ex BVPI 84a) with a figure of 279kg per person.  

 Is ranked joint 10th for the Council with the largest percentage decrease, (7.8%) 
compared with the previous year. 

 
3.1.11 Following the introduction of wheeled bins for recycling; waste collection staff, street 

cleansing staff, Councillors, officers and local residents have all comments on the 
improvement in street cleanliness levels as there is now little ‘wind-blown’ litter on 
recycling collection days. 

 
3.2.12 The Council is aware of residents reporting broken lids/wheeled bins. However, under the 

terms of the tender the manufacturer guaranteed the containers for a period of 11 years so 
all replacements are being supplied to the Council free of charge.  

 
  

Page 9



 

 

3.2 Litter & Dog Fouling Enforcement  
3.2.1 At its July 2018 meeting, Cabinet approved the appointment of an external litter and dog 

fouling enforcement contractor on a 12 month pilot, with a request that operations would 
be up and running in time for the opening of the new Accrington Town Centre square in 
November. 

 
3.2.2 There was also a request from the Portfolio Holder and other Members that there should 

be a two week period of public education funded by the Council. This would raise 
awareness of the need to dispose of litter responsibly and clean up after their dog prior to 
the first FPN’s being issued. 

 
3.2.3 The Council took the opportunity to provide dedicated cigarette bins on the new town 

square as part of the redevelopment. However, it is not financially possible to replace all 
650+ litterbins to incorporate ashtrays across the Borough. However, as and when a litter 
bin needs replacing, the Council will, where practical, chose a replacement that 
incorporates a stubbing out plate/ashtray.   

 
3.2.4 The table below shows how many PFN’s were issued for each of the 11 months of the 

pilot. The reasons for the difference can be partly answered by; fluctuating staffing levels, 
FPN’s only started being issued from 19th November and no patrols occurring over the 
Christmas / New Year holiday period or other Bank Holidays. 

  
2018 2019 

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep 

           

128 178 184 230 284 160 159 217 177 208 219 

  
The contractor has provided the Council access to view the ‘live’ enforcement recording 
system and for the 11 months available, the following statistical information is available; 

  
 Gender/Age 

61% of FPN’s were issued to males and 39% to females. Of these;  
 

 4% -  under 20  

 43% - 20 to 39  

 33% - 40 to 59 

 13% - 60+ 

 7% - unknown 
 
Ethnicity 

 88% - White North/South European 

 7% - unknown 

 3.5% - Asian  

 0.5% - Chinese 

 0.5% - Arabic or North African 

 0.5% - Black 
 

Number and Location of all PFN’s Issued 

Page 10



 

 

 990 - Accrington Town Centre 

 768 - Other areas within Accrington 

 6 - Altham 

 1 - Baxenden 

 31 - Church 

 56 - Clayton Le Moors 

 139 - Great Harwood 

 22 - Huncoat 

 68 – Oswaldtwistle 

 57 – Rishton 
 

FPN Status 
2,138 FPN’s have been issued over the pilot period and from these; 
 

 1,163 have been paid 

 315 are still within the payment window period 

 330 have been ‘written off’ (e.g. mental health reasons, incorrect details, 
unable/uneconomical to pursue) 

 60 were cancelled (e.g. age of offender, evidence shortfall, officer misconduct) 

 270 have been referred to the Council legal section for non-payment of the FPN 
 
Prosecutions 
Of the 270; 
 

 85 cases have been fined by the courts 

 7 have been served at court and are awaiting a hearing date 

 The remaining are being processed 
 
3.2.5 Members of the public and local councillors have commented on the improvements in the 

street cleanliness in the town centre. Feedback from the Council’s street cleansing 
operatives have confirmed this and now notice people now looking around for a bin 
instead of dropping litter on the floor. 

 
3.2.6 The contractor has their own internal complaints and appeals procedure. The Council has 

only received 14 complaints and these can be grouped into the following areas; 
  

 2 complaints about the policy of using enforcement officers to deal with littering 

 5 complaints about the officers conduct 

 1 complaint dropping cigarettes down a drain was not littering 

 3 complaints the littering offence was on private property  

 3 complaints suggesting they though the person issued with the FPN was a 
vulnerable person 

 
The Portfolio Holder has viewed the body worm camera footage relating to a number of 
the complaints and was reassured that the officer’s behaviour in all videos was 
professional.  

 

Page 11



 

 

3.2.7 The pilot agreement was based on LA Support retaining 90% of all FPN’s paid and the 
Council receiving 10%. The estimated income to the Council over the 12 month pilot 
period, minus the cost of LA Support officers providing the 2 weeks education programme 
will be around £3,000, all of which is being reinvested into street cleansing.  

3.2.8 A report is due to be taken to the November meeting of Cabinet to consider the continued 
use of litter and dog fouling enforcement across the Borough. If approved, Cabinet is being 
asked to give approval to extend the current pilot agreement until 31st March 2020 to 
facilitate the necessary time to tender the service. 
 
 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Update report to Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee only. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 With Portfolio Holder. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

N/A 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

N/A 

Assessment of risk N/A 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

N/A 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1      Cabinet Report 18 July 2018  

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2304&Ver=4  
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 

Page 12

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2304&Ver=4


 

OUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING CENTRES 

USEHOLD WASTE RECYCLING CENTRES 

 

 

PARTNERSHIP UPDATE  

ARTNERSHIP UPDATE  

 

  
   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Dwelling Stock 

2018/19 
Population 
2018/19 

 

glass / cans / plastic bottle 
2018/19   

 

paper and card 2018/19  

 

residual 2018/19  

      
 

 tonnes  
 
kg/pp/yr  

 
 tonnes  kg/pp/yr 

 
 tonnes  kg/pp/yr 

Burnley                       41,260  
           
87,705  

 
        3,205  

          
37  

 
     1,902  

          
22  

 
  19,357 

        
221  

Chorley                       50,590  
          
115,772  

 
        6,975  

          
60  

 
     3,825  

          
33  

 
   24,199  

        
209  

Fylde                       38,530  
           
78,863  

 
        4,100  

          
52  

 
     3,197  

          
41  

 
   17,199  

        
218  

Hyndburn                       36,840  
           
80,410  

 
        3,451  

          
43  

 
     2,358  

          
29  

 
   14,414  

        
179  

Lancaster                       64,430  
          
142,487  

 
        4,350  

          
31  

 
     3,716  

          
26  

 
   28,631  

        
201  

Pendle                       40,300  
           
90,696  

 
        3,797  

          
42  

 
     2,319  

          
26  

 
   22,315  

        
246  

Preston                       62,940  
          
141,346  

 
        5,522  

          
39  

 
     4,384  

          
31  

 
   34,998  

        
248  

Ribble Valley                       26,660  
           
59,504  

 
        2,474  

          
42  

 
     1,640  

          
28  

 
   16,802  

        
282  

Rossendale                       31,910  
           
70,365  

 
        3,615  

          
51  

 
     1,805  

          
26  

 
   16,158  

        
230  

South Ribble                       49,260  
          
110,400  

 
        6,452  

          
58  

 
     3,400  

          
31  

 
   23,172  

        
210  

West Lancs                       49,380  
          
113,881  

 
        5,472  

          
48  

 
     4,661  

          
41  

 
   24,110  

        
212  

Wyre                       52,240  
          
110,426  

 
        4,661  

          
42  

 
     4,363  

          
40  

 
   23,461  

        
212  

Blackpool                       71,440  
          
139,870  

 
        6,293  

          
45  

 
     3,721  

          
27  

 
   41,122  

        
294  

BwDBC                       60,920  
          
148,772  

 
        5,582  

          
38  

 
     4,567  

          
31  

 
   39,453  

        
265  

# BwDB assumed apportionment 
split average 

 
        4,711  

          
45  

 
     3,276  

          
31  

 
   24,671  

        
230  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Residual and both streams of Recyclable waste, in kilograms per person per year (kg/pp/yr) 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	Minutes

	3. Review of New Recycling Scheme and Litter/ Dog Fouling Enforcement Scheme
	LWP Performance Dashboard 2018-19

	4. Hyndburn Arts Trust
	2. HAT Board Skills Audit
	3. Minutes of Meeting-Sept '19
	4. Minutes of Meeting - 16 Oct 19
	5. Hyndburn Arts Ltd Account Balances 2019-10-17-10_40
	6. Hyndburn Arts Ltd Account Balances 2019-10-17-10_41
	7. Budget for 202021


